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دٍََّّالَلّٰهُم َّ َّمَُُم  َّآلِّ
دٍَّوعَََلَ َّمَُُم  َّعََلَ ِّ

صَل   

َّإِّبرَْاهِّيمَََّّ َّآلِّ
َّإِّبرَْاهِّيمََّوعَََلَ كَمَاَّصَل يتََّْعََلَ  

إِّن كََّحََِّيدٌَّمََِّيدٌََّّ  

دٍََّّالَلّٰهُم ََّّ َّمَُُم  َّآلِّ
دٍَّوعَََلَ َّمَُُم  باَرِّكَّْعََلَ  

َّإِّبرَْاهِّيمََّكَمَاَّباَرَكْتَََّّ َّآلِّ
َّإِّبرَْاهِّيمََّوعَََلَ َّعََلَ  

إِّن كََّحََِّيدٌَّمََِّيدٌََّّ  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For my mother & father



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

9 | P a g e  
 

Contents 
Introduction ........................................................................................ 12 

The Enemies of Rasūlullāh  ......................................... 17 

ʿAmr ibn Hishām – Abū Jahl ......................................................... 18 

Abū Lahab ibn ʿAbd al-Muṭṭalib ................................................... 21 

Ummayah ibn Khalaf ..................................................................... 22 

Ubay ibn Khalaf .............................................................................. 23 

ʿUqbah ibn Abū Muʿayṭ ................................................................. 25 

Al-ʿĀṣ ibn Wā’il ............................................................................... 26 

The Suffering of the Companions  .................................... 28 

Bilāl ibn Rabāḥ  ................................................................... 29 

The family of ʿAmmār ibn Yāsir  ....................................... 32 

Ṣuhayb .................................................................................. 34 

Khabbāb  ............................................................................... 36 

The Splitting of the Moon ................................................................. 38 

The First Migration to Abyssinia ...................................................... 41 

The Land of Abyssinia ................................................................... 43 

The Second Migration to Abyssinia ................................................. 45 

The Court of Najjāshī ..................................................................... 47 

The Trial continues ........................................................................ 50 

ʿUmar ibn al-Khaṭṭāb  ............................................................. 52 



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

10 | P a g e  
 

The Plan of ʿUmar  .............................................................. 53 

The House of Fāṭimah bint al-Khattāb  ........................... 55 

ʿUmar  reads the Qur’ān ..................................................... 57 

ʿUmar  embraces Islām ....................................................... 58 

The Boycott ......................................................................................... 61 

The Boycott Starts ......................................................................... 62 

The Difficulties of the Boycott ..................................................... 63 

The Secret Provisions .................................................................... 64 

The Effort to Break the Boycott ................................................... 65 

The Announcement ....................................................................... 66 

The Document ................................................................................ 67 

The Migration of Abū Bakr  .................................................... 68 

The Year of Sorrow ............................................................................ 72 

The Death of Abū Ṭālib .................................................................. 72 

The Burial of Abū Ṭālib.................................................................. 75 

The Death of Khadījah ....................................................... 76 

The Journey to Ṭā’if ........................................................................... 77 

The Invitation to the Leaders ....................................................... 78 

ʿAddās .............................................................................................. 79 

The Angels Offer ............................................................................. 80 

The Jinns Listen to the Call ........................................................... 82 



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

11 | P a g e  
 

The Return to Makkah ................................................................... 84 

Summary.............................................................................................. 86 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

12 | P a g e  
 

 Introduction 
 begin in the name of Allāh  Lord of the Worlds and 
sending Peace and Salutations on our beloved Rasūlullāh 
. 

 
The period of the final Prophecy had begun.  What started with 
Ādam  many thousands of years ago, was now culminating 
with a man from the progeny of Ibrāhīm , the ‘Seal of the 
Prophets’, Rasūlullāh . 
 
The first Revelation had come inside the cave of Ḥirā’, high on top 
of a mountain called Jabl al-Nūr.  Allāh  sent down the 
greatest Angel, Jibrīl , to the greatest place on earth, 
Makkah, on the greatest night, Laylatul Qadr, with the greatest 
Revelation, the Noble Qur’ān, to the greatest man ever, Rasūlullāh 
. 
 
The first few verses of Sūrah al-ʿAlaq were revealed and 
Rasūlullāh  returned home to inform his wife, Khadījah 
.  She took him to her cousin, Waraqah ibn Naufal who 
confirmed that this message had indeed come from the same 
Angel who had brought the Revelation to Mūsā , proving it 
was divine.  
 
The people nearest and dearest to Rasūlullāh  accepted 
his message and embraced Islām.  Among them were his wife, 

I 
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children, and other members of his household like Zayd and ʿAlī 
. His dearest friend, Abū Bakr  was also one of the first 
to answer his call towards Allāh .  The early Muslims 
would congregate in the house of Arqam  near the mountain 
Aṣ-Ṣafā. 
 
For the first few years, the call to Islām was done privately, then 
Allāh  sent down the following verses: 
 

ِّيَنَّ رَب
قۡ
َ
يَرتكَََّٱلۡۡ رَّۡعَشِّ نذِّ

َ
 ٢١٤وَأ

َّٱت بَعَكََّمِّنََّٱلمُۡؤۡمِّنِّيَنَّوََّ  ِّمَنِّ  ٢١٥1ٱخۡفِّضَّۡجَنَاحَكََّل

 
“And warn the nearest people of your clan,  

and be kind with humbleness to the believers who followed you.” 
 
Rasūlullāh  then called the Quraysh and invited them 
towards Islām.  Abū Lahab, the uncle of Rasūlullāh  
openly rejected his call and made his two sons, who were married 
to the daughters of Rasūlullāh , divorce their wives. 
 
Rasūlullāh  continued to call people towards the truth 
and the Quraysh became more and more worried.  They sent 
delegations to the uncle of Rasūlullāh , Abū Ṭālib, telling 

 
1 Sūrah ash-ShuꜤarā Verses 214-215 
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him to persuade his nephew to stop preaching.  But Rasūlullāh 
 did not stop and Abū Ṭālib continued to support his 
nephew even though he himself had not embraced Islām. 
 
The Quraysh now tried to tell everyone who came to the House of 
Allāh  for pilgrimage, that Rasūlullāh  was a 
magician who caused differences between family members.  This 
plan back fired, and even more people were now aware of the new 
Prophet. 
 
The Quraysh changed their approach and tried to appease 
Rasūlullāh  by offering him everything, but he refused 
and Allāh  revealed Sūrah al-Kāfirūn. 
 
The Quraysh then sought help from the Jews in Yathrib, as they 
had knowledge of the Prophets and Scriptures.  They provided the 
Quraysh with questions which would confirm one way or the 
other, whether Rasūlullāh  was a true Prophet or not. 
 

The questions were posed to Rasūlullāh 
 and Allāh  sent 

down Revelation to answer them.  
Even this didn’t appease the Quraysh. 
They would now try even more 

desperately to stop the message of 
Islām by any means necessary. 
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The early Muslims faced many trials and tribulations from the 
Quraysh.  Many of their leaders, like Abū Jahal, Abū Lahab, 
Umayyah, and Ubay ibn Khalaf were open enemies of Islām. 
 

The Companions  who had no supporters or helpers faced 
great difficulties.  The likes of Bilāl, ʿAmmār, Yāsir, Sumayyah and 
Khabbāb  were persecuted and suffered greatly at the 
hands of the Quraysh.  Some of the Companions  paid the 
ultimate price for remaining steadfast in their faith. 
 
The Quraysh then asked Rasūlullāh  to show them 
miracles to prove he was a true Prophet.  They asked for the moon 
to be split into two.  Rasūlullāh  asked them if they 
would believe in him if he could do this.  They replied that they 
would.   
 
By the command of Allāh , the moon was split into two 
with each of the parts over two of the mountains of Makkah.  The 
moon stayed like this for a while and the Quraysh saw it clearly, 
yet still refused to believe in Rasūlullāh . 
 
Due to the continued persecution of the Muslims by the Quraysh, 
Rasūlullāh  gave permission to some of the Companions 
 to migrate to Abyssinia.  Najjāshī, the king of Abyssinia was 
a just ruler and he would allow them to live there and practise 
Islām freely. 
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When the Quraysh found out about the migrants, they sent a 
delegation to Abyssinia.  They would try everything in their 
power to convince Najjāshī to send the Muslims back.   
 
The Muslims were summoned to his court and were questioned 
regarding Islām and specifically about ʿĪsā .  Jaʿfar , 
the cousin of Rasūlullāh eloquently answered the 
questions quoting verses of the Qur’ān.  When Najjāshī heard the 
Revelation, he said ʿĪsā  himself did not claim any more 
than what had been mentioned. 
 
Najjāshī told the Qurayshi messengers that he would not send the 
Muslims back under any circumstances. The Muslims now stayed 
in Abyssinia and practised their religion without any threat of 
persecution, whilst the Qurayshi delegation returned home 
having failed in their mission to bring the Muslims back. 
 
  



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

17 | P a g e  
 

The Enemies of Rasūlullāh  
akkah was controlled by the Quraysh, who were a tribe 
from the descendants of Ibrāhīm , through the 
children of his son, Ismāʿīl .  Their forefather 

Quṣayy, the father of ʿAbd Manāf had become the ruler of Makkah 
after his father-in-law Ḥulayl, from the Banū Khuzāʿah passed 
away. 
 
Rasūlullāh  came from the clan of Banū Hāshim, who 
were the descendants of Hāshim, one of the sons of ʿAbd Manāf.  
One of their responsibilities was to look after the pilgrims who 
would come to visit the House of Allāh . 
 
Even though Rasūlullāh  came from the same tribe, 
many of the Quraysh, including members of his own extended 
family did not embrace Islām.  Some of them supported him, even 
though they did not embrace, like his uncle Abū Ṭālib, whilst 
others declared their enmity openly and did whatever they could 
to stop Rasūlullāh  and his message. 

 قريش

M 
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ʿAmr ibn Hishām – Abū Jahl 
One of the most notorious enemies of Islām was ʿAmr ibn Hishām, 
more famously known as Abū Jahl.  This name was given to him 
by Rasūlullāh  and means ‘father of ignorance’.  He was 
the ‘Firʿaun’ (Pharaoh) of the Ummah of Rasūlullāh . 
 
Abū Jahl was also known by the Quraysh as Abū al-Ḥakam, which 
means ‘father of wisdom’, due to his intelligence and wisdom. 
 
Abū Jahl left no stone unturned in trying to cause as much harm 
as possible to Rasūlullāh  and the early Muslims.   
 
On one occasion Rasūlullāh was praying near the Kaʿbah 
and Abū Jahl and his companions were sitting 
close by.  The previous day a camel had 
been slaughtered. Abū Jahl asked his 
companions, which one of them would 
go and fetch the foetus of this 
slaughtered camel and place it between 
the shoulders of Rasūlullāh  
when he goes down in prostration? 
 
One of his companions did what Abū Jahl asked and placed the 
foetus of the dead camel between the blessed shoulders of 
Rasūlullāh  when he went into Sajdah. Upon seeing this, 
Abū Jahl and his companions started laughing so much that they 
were falling over each other. 
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ʿAbdullāh ibn Masʿūd  was watching all of this take place 
and said, if he had the power, he would have thrown the camels 
foetus away from the back of Rasūlullāh . 
 
Rasūlullāh  stayed in Sajdah and didn’t raise his head 
until a man went and informed his daughter, Fāṭimah  who 
was still a young girl at the time.  She came and removed the camel 
foetus from the back of Rasūlullāh , then turned towards 
Abū Jahl and his companions and rebuked them.   
 
When Rasūlullāh  finished his Salāh, he raised his voice 
and supplicated to Allāh  against them.  He did this three 
times and then invoked Allāh  and said: 
 

ِّقُرَيشٍََّّْالَلّٰهُم ََّّ عَلَيكََّْب  
“O Allāh it is for you to deal with the Quraysh.” 

 
When Abū Jahl and his companions heard the words of Rasūlullāh 
, their laughter went away, and they feared his 
supplication.   
 
Rasūlullāh  then said: 

َّبََّّْالَلّٰهُم ََّّ َّجَهْلِّ بِِّ
َ
ِّأ َّعَلَيكََّْب يبَْةََّبنِّْ ِّيعَةََّوشََ َّرَب تبَْةََّبنِّْ َّهِّشَامٍَّوعَُ نِّ

َّمُعَيطٍَّْ بِِّ
َ
َّأ قْبَةََّبنِّْ َّخَلفٍََّوعَُ مَي ةََّبنِّْ

ُ
َّعُقْبَةََّوَأ َّبنِّْ دِّ ِّيعَةََّوَالوَْلِِّ  رَب
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“O Allāh, it is for you to deal with Abū Jahl ibn Hishām and 
ʿUtbah ibn Rabīʿah and Shaybah ibn Rabīʿah and Walīd ibn 

ʿUqbah and Ummayah ibn Khalaf and ʿUqbah ibn Abū Muʿayṭ.” 
 
A seventh person was also mentioned but ʿAbdullāh ibn Masʿūd 
 didn’t remember his name. 2 
 
Allāh  answered the prayer of Rasūlullāh  and 
all those mentioned, met their fateful end on the day of Badr. 
 
 
  

 
2 Ṣaḥīḥ Muslim 1794 

Figure 1 - The battlefield of Badr 
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Abū Lahab ibn ʿAbd al-Muṭṭalib 
Abū Lahab was the paternal uncle of Rasūlullāh , as well 
as the father-in-law of Ruqayyah and Umm Kulthūm , the 
daughters of Rasūlullāh . 
 
When Rasūlullāh  invited the Quraysh to come to Islām, 
Abū Lahab was the first to deny the call.  Abū Lahab’s wife, Umm 
Jamīl bint Ḥarb was the sister of Abū Sufyān ibn Ḥarb. She also 
joined her husband in making life difficult for Rasūlullāh 
.  She used to collect thorny branches and lay them in 
the path of Rasūlullāh  at night time to cause him harm. 

 
Abū Lahab was very wealthy.  Whenever he would be warned 
about the punishment of Allāh , he would say “If my 
nephew’s words are true, then on the Day of Judgement, I will 
escape the punishment by ransoming myself, with my wealth and 
children”. 
 
Allāh  sent down Sūrah Lahab which had news of what 
awaited the unfortunate couple.  We shall find out later what 
Allāh  had planned for them. 
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Ummayah ibn Khalaf 
Ummayah and Ubay were brothers who declared their open 
enmity towards Islām.  Ummayah used to openly swear at 
Rasūlullāh .  Allāh  then Revealed the following 
about him: 

َِّّ َِّّوَيۡلٌَّل 
ُّمَزَةٍَّكُ  دَه١ََُّّهُمَزَةٍَّل د  ِّىَّجَََعََّمَالًاَّوعََ ٢َّ ٱلَّ   

ن ََّّيََۡسَبَُّ 
َ
هََُّّ مَالَََُّّأ خۡلَََ

َ
٣ََّّأ ََّّلَُِنۢبَذَن ََّّكََل  ٤َّٱلُۡۡطَمَةَِّّفِّ  

دۡرَٮكَََّّٰومََا َّ 
َ
ََِّّّناَر٥ََُّّٱلُۡۡطَمَةََُّّمَاَّأ ٦َّٱلمُۡوقدََةََُّّاللّّٰ  

 َّ تِّ
لِّعََُّّٱل  ََّّتَط  فۡـ ِّدَةََِّّّعََلَ

َ
يۡهِّمَّإِّن هَا٧َّٱلۡۡ

دَةٌََّّعَلَ ؤصَۡ ٨َّمُّ  

3 ٩ دَةََِّّّ مَد  ََّّعَمَدٍََّّمُّ   فِّ
 

“Woe to every backbiter, derider (1)  
Who accumulates wealth and counts it. (2)  

He thinks that his wealth has made him eternal. (3)  
Never! He will certainly be thrown into the crushing fire. (4)  

And what may let you know what the crushing fire is? (5)  
It is Allāh’s kindled fire (6) That will peep into the hearts. (7)  

It will be closed on them, (8) In outstretched columns. (9)” 
 
Ummayah ibn Khalaf was killed in the battle of Badr by either 
Khubayb or Bilāl . 

 
3 Sūrah al-Humazah 
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Ubay ibn Khalaf 
Ubay was his brother’s equal when it came to making life hard for 
Rasūlullāh .  On one occasion, he went to Rasūlullāh 
with an old bone.  He rubbed it in his hand and then 
blew the dust.  He then said, “Will Allāh  make this alive 
again?”  Rasūlullāh  said, “Yes, and your bones as well 
when they become like this. He will make you alive again and 
throw you into the fire”.  The following verses were then Revealed 
which are the final verses in Surah Yāsīn: 
 

َّخَلۡقَهَُّ َ   وَضََبَََّلََاََّمَثَلًاَّوَنسَِِّ

ٰـمَََّّيحََُِّّّۡمَنَّقاَلَََّّ َََّّٱلۡعِّظَ ل٧٨ََّرمَِّيمٌََّّوَهِّ و 
َ
هَا َّأ
َ
نشَأ
َ
َّأ ِّى  قُليُحۡيِّيۡهَاَّٱلَّ 

ةٍَّ وََّبِّكَُّمَر  َّخَلقٍَّۡعَلِّيمٌََّّوهَُ ِّ
جَر٧٩َِّّل  ِّنََّٱلش  ِّىَّجَعَلََّلكَُمَّم  ٱلَّ 

ِّدُونََّ ِّنۡهَُّتوُق نتُمَّم 
َ
ِّذَا َّأ ضَََِّّناَرًاَّفإَ خۡ

َ
ِّىَّخَلق٨٠َََّٱلۡۡ وَليَۡسََّٱلَّ 

َ
أ

نَّيََۡلقََُّمِّثۡلهَُم
َ
َّأ ٰٓ رٍَّعََلَ ٰـدِّ ِّقَ رۡضََّب

َ
لۡۡ َّوٱَ مٰوتِّٰ ٰـقَُّالس  وََّٱلَۡۡل  َّوهَُ َّبلَََٰ
رَادَََّّإِّن مَا ٨١َّٱلۡعَلِّيمَُّ

َ
مۡرهََُُّّإِّذَا َّأ

َ
ـاأ نَّيَقُولََّلَََُّّشَيۡـٴً۬

َ
أ  

ء٨٢ٍَّ كُنَّفَيَكُونََُّّ َّشََۡ ِّ
َّمَلكَُوتَُّكُ  ّۦِ ه ِّىَّبِّيَدِّ

ٰـنََّٱلَّ  فَسُبۡحَ
4 ٨٣ عُونََّ  وَإِلَِۡهَِّّترُجَۡ

 
 

4 Sūrah Yāsīn Verses 78-83 
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“He has set up an argument about Us and forgot his creation.  
He said,  

‘Who will give life to the bones when they are decayed?’ (78)  
Say, ‘These will be revived by the same One who had created 

them for the first time, 
 and who is fully aware of every creation, (79)  

The One who created for you fire from the green tree,  
and in no time, you kindle from it.’ (80)  

Is it that the One who has created the heavens and the earth has 
no power to create ones like them? Why not?  

He is the Supreme Creator, the All-Knowing. (81)  
His practice, when He intends to do something, is no more than 

He says, ‘Be’, and it comes to be. (82)  
So, pure (from every fault) is the One in whose hand is the 

dominion of all things.  
And towards Him you are to be returned. (83)” 

 
Ubay ibn Khalaf was killed in the battle of Uḥud by the hands of 
Rasūlullāh   himself.  
 
  



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

25 | P a g e  
 

ʿUqbah ibn Abū Muʿayṭ 
ʿUqbah, was a good friend of Ubay ibn Khalaf.  One day ʿUqbah 
came to Rasūlullāh , sat close to him for a while and 
listened to him.  When Ubay found out about this, he immediately 
went to ʿUqbah.  Ubay told him that he had received news that he 
had sat with Rasūlullāh  and listened to his words.  Ubay 
then said, “I swear by God, until you go and spit on the face of 
Muḥammad (), it will be impermissible for me to talk to 
you or see your face”.  Upon hearing the words of his friend, 
ʿUqbah got up and went and spat on the blessed face of Rasūlullāh 
.   The following verses were then Revealed by Allāh 
: 
 

َّ ذَۡتَُّمَعََّٱلر سُولِّ َّٱتَّ  يۡتَنِِّ
ٰـلَ َّيدََيهَِّّۡيَقُولَُّيَ ٰ ِّمَُّعََلَ ال َّٱلظ  وَيَومََّۡيَعَضُّ

ِّذَّۡفلَُاناًَّخَلِّيلًا٢٧َّسَبِّيلًاَّ تَّ 
َ
َّلمََّۡأ َّلَِۡتَنِِّ ٰـوَيۡلتََٰ ٢٨يَ  

  َّۡ ِّذَّۡجَا ءَنِّ ِّكۡرَِّّبَعۡدََّا َّالَّ  َّعَنِّ ۡ نِِّ
لَقَدَّۡاضََل   

َّخَذُوۡلًاََّّ ِّلۡاِّنسَۡانِّ يۡطٰنَُّل ٢٩ََّّوَكََنََّالش  َّقوَۡمِِّ َّإِّن  ِّ ٰـربَ  ولَُّيَ اَلََّٱلر سُ وقَ
َانََّمَهۡجُورًاَّ ٰـذَاَّٱلۡقُرءۡ ذَُواَّْهَ َّعَدُوًّا٣٠َّٱتَّ  َّنبَِّ ٍ ِّ

ِّكََّجَعَلۡنَاَّلِّكُ  وَكَذٰل
5 َّ ٣١ يًراَّ ِّكََّهَادِّياًَّوَنصَِّ ِّرَب  َّب ِّنََّٱلمُۡجۡرِّمِّينَََّّوَكَفََٰ  م 

 

 
5 Sūrah al-Furqān Verses 27-31 
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“And (Be mindful of) the Day the wrongdoer will bite his hands 
saying, ‘Would that I had taken a path  

along with the Messenger! (27)  
Woe to me! Would that I had not taken 

 so-and-so for my friend! (28)  
Indeed, he led me astray from the advice after it had come  

to me.’ And the Satan is man’s betrayer. (29)  
And the Messenger will say, ‘O my Lord, my people had taken 

this Qur’an as deserted.’ (30)  
In a similar way We made for every Prophet an enemy from 
among the sinners, but your Lord suffices as a guide and as a 

supporter. (31)” 
 
Al-ʿĀṣ ibn Wā’il 
There were many other staunch enemies of Rasūlullāh  
including Walīd ibn Mughirah, Abū Qays ibn al Fāka, Al-Naḍr ibn 
al-Hārith and Al-ʿĀṣ ibn Wā’il.   
 
All the male children of Rasūlullāh  passed away when 
they were young.  Upon this Al-ʿĀṣ ibn Wā’il said:  
 

 انَّمُمداَّابترَّلاَّيعيشَّلَّولد
 

“Muḥammad ( ) is ‘abtar’, none of his sons remain 
alive.” 
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The word ‘abtar’, was a term used for an animal whose tail had 
been cut off.  The person who had no male offspring to carry their 
name forward, was also referred to as ‘abtar’.  Hence the reason 
why Al-ʿĀṣ used this term against Rasūlullāh . 
 
Allāh  then revealed the following verse from Sūrah al-
Kauthar: 
 

6 ٣ بتَۡرَُّ
َ
ِّئَكََّهُوََّٱلۡۡ َّشَان  إِّن 

 
“Surely it is your enemy whose traces are cut off.” 

 
One month after the Hijrah (migration to Madīnah), an animal bit 
Al-ʿĀṣ ibn Wā’il on his leg.  This caused his leg to swell so much 
that it was like the neck of a camel.  This led to the sad end of Al-
ʿĀṣ ibn Wā’il. How many people remember him due to his male 
offspring? 
 
On the other hand, there are millions and millions of people who 
remember Rasūlullāh  and will continue to remember 
him till the end of days, even though he had no male offspring 
who survived till adulthood. 
 
 
  

 
6 Sūrah al-Kauthar Verse 3 
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The Suffering of the Companions  
s Islām spread and the number of Muslims began to grow,  
the anger and enmity of the polytheists also began to 
increase.  The Quraysh could not cause much harm to 

those Muslims who had supporters or helpers, but those Muslims 
who had no protection, who were destitute and helpless, became 
their targets for oppression. 
  
Some of the Muslims were attacked physically, whilst others were 
denied food and drink.  Some of them were laid on hot stones in 
the middle of the day when the sun was at its hottest, whilst 
others were tied up.  Many incidents took place which show us 
how much suffering the Companions  had to undergo and 
how much patience they had to have, in the face of such 
oppression.  Some of these blessed Companions  will now 
be mentioned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A 
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Figure 2 - The Land of Abyssinia 

Bilāl ibn Rabāḥ   
Bilāl  was from the ancient land of Abyssinia.  Today this 
would be part of Eritrea and the Tigray region of Ethiopia.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Bilāl  was the slave of Umayyah ibn Khalaf and had 
embraced Islām. This led to all kinds of torture being inflicted 
upon him.  In the intense heat of the day, when the rocks used to 
heat up, Umayyah would order the other slaves to lay Bilāl  
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on the boiling rocks and then place a large rock on his chest so he 
would not be able to move.     
 
Umayyah would then say to him, “You will die like this. If you 
want to be free, then turn away from Muḥammad () and 
follow Al-Lāt and Al-ʿUzza’ (These were names of their idols)”.  
Even then there was only one thing on the tongue of Bilāl , 
‘Aḥad’, ‘Aḥad’, meaning there is only one Allāh . 

احد
Sometimes they would wrap Bilāl  in the hide of a cow and 
at other times they would put metal armour on him and make him 
sit in the intense heat of the sun.  Even then, there was only one 
word on his lips. 
 
When Umayyah saw these punishments were not having an effect 
on Bilāl , he tied a rope around his neck and made him get 
dragged throughout the city. Even then, there was only one word 
on his lips. 
 
On one occasion when Bilāl  was being tortured, Abū Bakr 
 passed by and his heart filled with pity.  He said to Umayyah 
that he had a slave who was very strong and also on their religion.  
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Ummayah should take him, and in exchange hand over Bilāl 
 to him.  Umayyah agreed and as soon as Bilāl was 
handed over to Abū Bakr , he was freed.   
  
The torture and suffering of Bilāl  was so severe that his 
scars and marks could be seen on his body whenever he exposed 
his back.   
 
Allāh   gave Bilāl   such a high status that he was the 
first Mu’adhin in Islām. On the day of the conquest of Makkah, he 
was the one who climbed the Kaʿbah and called out the Adhān. 
Imagine how those people who had caused him so much suffering 
felt when they saw this person who was tortured and humiliated, 
now being given such an elevated position in Islām. 
 
Allāh  gives respect to whoever he wishes. 
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The family of ʿAmmār ibn Yāsir  
Yāsir  was originally from Yemen.  He had arrived in 
Makkah in search of one of his brothers who was lost.  His two 
brothers, Al-Ḥārith and Mālik were also with him.  Al-Ḥārith and 
Mālik returned to Yemen whilst Yāsir  
remained behind in Makkah. He became 
friends with Abū Ḥudhayfah 
Makhzūmī. who gave his slave girl, 
Sumayyah bint Khabbāṭ  in 
marriage to Yāsir .  Together 
they had a son who they named 
ʿAmmār . They all stayed with 
Abū Ḥudhayfah until he passed away. 
 
Upon the advent of Islām, ʿAmmār , and his whole family 
including his brother ʿAbdullāh  all embraced.  ʿAmmār 
 had no tribe or family in Makkah, or anyone who would 
protect him, so the Quraysh caused him and his family great 
difficulty.  The Quraysh would lay ʿAmmār , on the burning 
ground during the hottest part of the day and beat him until he 
became unconscious. Sometimes they would try to drown him and 
sometimes lay him on hot coals.   
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When Rasūlullāh  used to go past him in this state, he 
would pass his blessed hands upon the head of ʿAmmār  and 
pray: 
 

 ياَّنارَّكونىَّبرداَّوَّسلاماَّعَلَّعمارَّكماَّكنتَّعَلَّابراهيم
  

“O fire, become cold and peaceful for ʿAmmār  like how 
you became cold and peaceful for Ibrāhīm .” 

 
When Rasūlullāh  used to see the family of ʿAmmār  in 
difficulty, he used to tell them to have patience. His father Yāsir 
 passed away first during this difficult time.  His mother 
Sumayyah was killed by Abū Jahl and was the first martyr 
in Islām.   
 
On the day of Badr when Abū Jahl was killed, Rasūlullāh  
said to ʿAmmār :   
 

 قتلَّاللَّّقاتلَّامك
“Allāh  has destroyed the one who killed your mother.” 
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Ṣuhayb  
Ṣuhayb was originally from Irāq.  His father and uncle 
served as governors on behalf of Kisrā, the Persian emperor.  
When he was still a young child, he was captured during a 
Byzantine raid.  He grew up as a slave with the Byzantines, so he 
was also known as ‘Ṣuhayb al-Rūmī’.  A man from the Banū Kalb 
purchased Ṣuhayb  and brought him to Makkah.  In Makkah, 
ʿAbdullāh ibn Jadʿān purchased him and subsequently freed him. 
 
When Rasūlullāh  started inviting people towards Islām, 
Ṣuhayb and ʿAmmār  both embraced at the same time in 
Dār al-Arqam. 
 
Similar to ʿAmmār , the Quraysh caused great difficulty for 
Ṣuhayb  as well.  When he intended to migrate to Madīnah, 
the Quraysh said he could only do so if he left all of his wealth 
behind in Makkah.  Ṣuhayb  agreed to their terms and 
migrated. 
 
Ṣuhayb  arrived in Madīnah and told Rasūlullāh  
what had happened. Rasūlullāh  said that he had made 
a great profit from this transaction. He had left that which was 
temporary for that which would remain forever. 
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Allāh  also revealed the following verse with regards to 
this event 
 

َّمَنَّيشَِّۡۡىَّنَفۡسَهَُّٱبتِّۡغَا ءََّمَرضَۡاتَِّّ ََِّّّومَِّنََّٱلَ اسِّ َّاللّّٰ  

7 ٢٠٧ ِّٱلۡعِّبَادَِّّ َّب ُوفُُۢ ََُّّرءَ  َّوَََّّاللّّٰ
 

“And among men there is one who sells his very soul to seek the 
pleasure of Allāh, 

and Allāh is Very-Kind to His servants.” 
 
 

ومِِّ َّٱَّصُهَيبْ لرُ   
 
  

 
7 Sūrah al-Baqarah Verse 207 
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Khabbāb  
Khabbāb ibn al-Aratt  was one of the first people to embrace 
Islām.  It is said he was the sixth person to enter the fold.  He was 
the slave of Umm Anmār.  When he became Muslim, Umm Anmār 
caused him many problems.  
 
Khabbāb  was an iron monger and used to make swords.  On 
one occasion he had made a sword for Al-ʿĀṣ ibn Wā’il.  When the 
time came for him to pay, Al-ʿĀṣ said he would not pay him 
anything until he stopped believing in Rasūlullāh .  
Khabbāb  told Al-ʿĀṣ, that if he died and came back to life 
again, even then he would not deny Rasūlullāh .  
 
Al-ʿĀṣ said, “Will I be brought back to life after I die?”  Khabbāb 
 told him that he would.  Al-ʿĀṣ then said, “When Allāh 
 gives me death and then makes me come back to life a 
second time, and my wealth and children will be with me, that  
is when I will repay your debt”. 
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Upon this Allāh  revealed the following verses: 
 

ِّىَّ َيتََّۡٱلَّ  فَرءَ
َ
َّمَالاًَّكََّأ وتيََن 

ُ
اَلََّلَۡ ٰـتِّنَاَّوقَ ّـِ اَيَ اََّّفَرََّب ٧٧وَوَلَدً  

َّعَهۡدًاَّ  ٰـنِّ َ ذَََّعِّندََّٱلر حَۡ
َّٱتَّ  مِّ

َ
لَعََّٱلۡغَيۡبََّأ ط 

َ
٧٨أ  

َّ َّلََُّكََل  اَّذَابَِّّٱلۡعَََّّمِّنَََّّ َّسَنَكۡتُبَُّمَاَّيَقُولَُّوَنَمُدُّ ٧٩َّمَدًّ  

8 َّ ٨٠ ِّيناََّفَرۡدًاَّ ت
ۡ
  وَنرَِّثهََُُّّمَاَّيَقُولََُّّوَيَأ

 
“Have you, then, seen him who rejected Our verses and said,  

‘I shall certainly be given wealth and children’? (77) 
Has he peeped into the Unseen or taken a covenant with the  

All-Merciful (Allāh)? (78) 
Never! We will write what he says and extend for him the 

punishment extensively. (79) 
And We will inherit from him what he is talking about, and he 

will come to Us all alone.” (80) 
 

الۡرت ََّّبنَّخب اب  
 

8 Sūrah Maryam Verses 77-79 
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The Splitting of the Moon 
round 8 years after Prophethood, some polytheists came 
to see Rasūlullāh .Among them were Al-Walīd 
ibn al-Mughīrah, Abū Jahl and Al-ʿĀṣ ibn Wā’il.  They said 

to Rasūlullāh , that if he was a true Prophet, he should 
show them a special sign. In another narration, they asked him to 
split the moon into two parts. 
 
It was the 14th night, so there was a full moon. Rasūlullāh 
 said to them, “If I show you this miracle, will you then 
bring faith?”. They all agreed that they would.  Rasūlullāh 
 supplicated to Allāh  and made a gesture 
towards the moon.  Suddenly the moon split into two parts.  One 
part of the moon was seen above Jabl Abū Qubays, whilst the other 
was above Jabl Qayqaʿān.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A 

Figure 3 - The Mountains of Makkah (Image courtesy of Binimad al-Ateeqi (Binimad.com)) 

Jabl Abū Qubays 

Jabl Qayqaʿān 
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The people were astonished.  They were rubbing their eyes and 
looking, as they couldn’t believe what they were seeing. 
 
The moon stayed like this for quite a while, around the same 
duration of time between ʿAṣr and Maghrib.   
 
Rasūlullāh  kept saying to the polytheists: 

اشهدواََّّاَّاشهدو  
“O people, bear witness. O people, bear witness.” 

 
The moon then returned to its normal state.  The polytheists 
turned to Rasūlullāh  and said he had done magic upon 
them.  They said they would wait for some people from outside to 
come and see if they also witnessed this, as it would be impossible 
for Rasūlullāh  to have done magic upon everyone. If 
they say they did see it, then it was true and if they didn’t see it, it 
was magic. 
 
Travellers started to come into Makkah and the polytheists 
started to question them, asking them if they had seen the moon 
split.   They all testified that they had seen the moon split into two 
parts but still the polytheists refused to accept this and continued 
to deny Rasūlullāh .  The polytheists said that this was 
temporary magic, whose affects will soon wear off.   
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Upon this Allāh  Revealed the following verses: 
 

َّٱلۡقَمَرَُّ نشَق  اعَةَُّوٱَ َّٱلس  بَتِّ ١ٱقۡتَرَ  

9 ٢ َّ سۡتَمِّرٌّ حۡرٌَّمُّ   وَإِنَّيرََوۡاَّْءَايةًََّيُعۡرِّضُواَّْوَيَقُولوُاَّْسِّ

 
“The Hour (of doom) has drawn near,  
and the moon has split asunder. (1)  

When these people see a sign, they turn away and say,  
‘(This is) a transient magic’. (2)” 

 
  

 
99 Sūrah al-Qamar Verses 1-2 
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The First Migration to Abyssinia 
s the number of Muslims increased, the polytheists of 
Makkah found different ways to persecute the Muslims to 
try and stop the wave of Islām.  Rasūlullāh  told 

his Companions  to spread themselves out in the land, so 
they asked him where they should go. 
 
Rasūlullāh  told them to go to Abyssinia, where there 
was a just king who never oppressed anyone.   
 
The Muslims wanted to go to a place where they could practise 
Islām without being persecuted and in the month of Rajjab, in the 
5th year of Prophethood, 11 men and 5 women left for Abyssinia.  
They were: 
 
Name 
ʿUthmān ibn ʿAffān  and his 
wife 

Ruqayyah , the 
daughter of Rasūlullāh 
 

ʿAbd al-Raḥmān ibn ʿAwf   
Al-Zubayr ibn al-ʿAwwām   
Abū Ḥudhayfah ibn ʿUtbah  
and his wife 

Sahlā bint Suhayl  

Muṣʿab ibn ʿUmayr   
Abū Salamah ibn ʿAbd al-Asad 
 and his wife  

Umm Salamah bint Abū 
Umayyah  (after 

A 
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 the death of her husband, 
she married Rasūlullāh 
) 

ʿUthmān ibn Maẓʿūn   
ʿĀmir ibn Rabīʿah  and his 
wife 

Laylā bint Abū Ḥathmā 
 

Suhayl ibn Bayḍā   
Abū Subrah ibn Abū Rahm  
and his wife 

Kulthūm bint Suhayl 
 

Ḥāṭib ibn ʿAmr   
 
These Companions  left secretly.  Some were walking, 
whilst others were riding on the backs of animals.  When the 
group reached the coast, it just so happened that there were two 
trade boats waiting to leave for Abyssinia. The boat people took 5 
dirhams and let them all aboard. According to Ḥāfiẓ ʿAskalānī 
, they boarded the boat from Jeddah.  

 
When the polytheists found out about the Companions  
leaving, they sent a person right away to catch them. By the time 
he arrived, the boats had already left, so his journey had been in 
vain. 
 



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

43 | P a g e  
 

The Land of Abyssinia 
The Companions  travelled over the Red Sea and crossed 
over into the African continent into the kingdom of Abyssinia.  As 
to where exactly in the kingdom the migrants travelled, Allāh 
 knows best, however the ancient capital of Abyssinia 
was called Aksum.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Abyssinia 

Jeddah 

Figure 4 - The Land of Abyssinia 
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The Companions  stayed in Abyssinia during the months of 
Rajjab and Shawwāl.  They then received news in Shawwāl that 
the people of Makkah had become Muslim, so they made their way 
back home. 
   
When they were close to Makkah, they found out that this news 
was incorrect, which put them in a severe predicament.  Some of 
them made their way into the city secretly, whilst others had to 
enter under the protection of others.  This was how the first 
migration to Abyssinia came to an end. 
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The Second Migration to Abyssinia 
he Quraysh now started to persecute the Muslims even 
more than before.  Rasūlullāh  once again gave 
the Companions  permission to emigrate to 

Abyssinia.  This time there were over 100 men and women.  
 
When the Quraysh saw the Muslims were living in Abyssinia 
peacefully and able to practise Islām freely, they decided to do 
something about it. They got together and had a meeting. A 
decision was made to send ʿAmr ibn al-ʿĀṣ and ʿAbdullāh ibn Abū 
Rabīʿah to Abyssinia with gifts, so they could win support of the 
Abyssinians.  Once they have their support, they will agree to send 
back the migrants. 
 
ʿAmr ibn al-ʿĀṣ and ʿ Abdullāh ibn Abū Rabīʿah arrived in Abyssinia 
and presented the gifts to the people who 
were close to the King. They then said 
that some of our people have left the 
religion of our forefathers and have 
sought refuge in your city.  They left our 
religion and have not even accepted your faith, meaning 
Christianity, but they have embraced a new faith which neither us 
nor you, are familiar with.  Our leaders have sent us to you so that 
you can hand these people over to us.  Can you all ask your King 
to hand these people back to us without any form of conversation.  

T 
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ʿAmr ibn al-ʿĀṣ and ʿAbdullāh ibn Abū Rabīʿah were worried that 
the King would call the Muslims and ask them some questions. 
 
ʿAmr ibn al-ʿĀṣ and ʿAbdullāh ibn Abū Rabīʿah then presented the 
Qurayshi gifts to Najjāshī, the King. The people in the court who 
had already been briefed, asked the King to hand over the 
Companions  to this delegation which had arrived from 
Makkah. 
 
The concern which ʿAmr ibn al-ʿĀṣ and ʿAbdullāh ibn Abū Rabīʿah 
had, became a reality. Najjāshī became angry and said that he 
cannot just hand these people over without speaking to them 
first.  How can it be that people who have come to his country to 
seek refuge, be handed over to people who oppose them without 
even an investigation? 
 
Najjāshī sent a person to call the Companions .  The 
Messenger arrived with the King’s message and the Companions 
 discussed the matter. They decided that they would only 
say what Rasūlullāh  has taught them in the court. 
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The Court of Najjāshī 
The Companions  arrived at the court and presented their 
greetings, the Salām.  None of them prostrated in front of the 
King.  The people in the court found this quite offensive and 
started to question them as to why they hadn’t bowed down.  In 
one narration it mentions that even the King Najjāshī asked why 
they hadn’t prostrated. 
 
Jaʿfar  told them that they do not prostrate to anyone apart 
from Allāh .  Allāh  has sent a Messenger to them 
and this is what he has commanded them to do.  
 
Regarding the Salām, the Companions  said, this is the way 
they greet Rasūlullāh  and greet each other. Rasūlullāh 
 has told them that the people of Heaven will also greet 
each other like this. 
   
Najjāshī then asked them which religion they had embraced other 
than Christianity or idol worship. Jaʿfar  stood up to give his 
answer.  He said, “O King, we were all ignorant and simple. We 
used to worship idols and eat carrion.  We were busy in all types 
of immodest actions.  We used to cut relations with our close 
relatives, and we used to behave badly with our neighbours.  
Whoever was strong amongst us, would wish to consume the 
weak.  We were in this state when Allāh  sent down his 
bounty. He sent a Messenger from amongst us, whose lineage, 
truthfulness, trustworthiness, and integrity we knew.   
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He called us to Allāh , that we believe He is One, recognize 
Him as One, and understand He is One.  Only worship Him alone.  
All the idols and stones which we used to worship, and our 
forefathers used to worship, leave them at once.  He commanded 
us to be truthful, trustworthy, to keep ties with our kin, be good 
to our neighbours, to keep away from causing bloodshed and 
impermissible talk.    
 
He stopped us from doing all bad things, vain talk, and falsehood. 
From eating the wealth of the orphan, to slandering a chaste pure 
woman.  He commanded us to only worship Allāh  and 
not to adjoin any partners with Him. That we read Ṣalāh and give 
Zakāh, and fast.” 
   
Jaʿfar  mentioned other things as well about what Islām 
teaches and said, “We have affirmed these and brought faith upon 
them and everything which comes from Allāh  to 
Rasūlullāh , we follow it.  Due to this, our people have 
caused us all types of harm and persecuted us in many ways, so 
that we leave worshipping the One Allāh  and go back to 
our old ways.   
 
When we got tired of this persecution and when it became 
difficult for us to follow our religion and our belief in One God, 
then we left our home with the hope that you will not oppress us.” 
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Figure 5 - Sūrah Maryam Verses 1-11 

Najjāshī said, “Can you remember any of the words which have 
come to your Prophet?”  Jaʿfar  replied he did. Najjāshī, then 
asked Jaʿfar  to recite some of them so he could listen to 
them.   
 
Jaʿfar  recited the opening verses of Sūrah Maryam.  Tears 
started to flow from the eyes of the King and all the people in the 
court.  
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The Trial continues 
When Jaʿfar  finished his recitation, Najjāshī said, “These 
words and the words which ʿĪsā  came with, are both from 
the same source”. He then said to the Qurayshi delegation that he 
will under no circumstance give these people up to them.   
 
When the delegation left the court, ʿAmr ibn al-ʿĀṣ said to 
ʿAbdullāh ibn Abū Rabīʿah, “Tomorrow I will say such a thing in 
front of the King that he will destroy these people”.   
 

ʿAbdullāh ibn Abū Rabīʿah advised him not to do this. Even though 
they differed in belief, these people were still their relatives.  ʿAmr 
ibn al-ʿĀṣ didn’t listen to him.   
 
The following day ʿAmr ibn al-ʿĀṣ went to Najjāshī and said that 
these people say bad things about ʿĪsā .   
 

 عِّيسََِّٱبۡنَُّمَرۡيَمَّۡ
 
Najjāshī once again called the Companions .  They got very 
worried about how they would answer Najjāshī when questioned 
about ʿĪsā .  It was agreed they would only say what Allāh 



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

51 | P a g e  
 

 and his Messenger  have said. They will not say 
anything against that.   
 
The Companions  arrived once again in the King’s court. 
Najjāshī asked them, “What do you say regarding ʿĪsā ”.  
Jaʿfar  said, “We only say what our Prophet  says 
about him, and that is ʿĪsā  is a slave of Allāh , and 
His Messenger. And he is a special Spirit from Allāh  and 
a special Word from Allāh ”.  
 
Najjāshī lifted a piece of straw off the floor and said, “I swear by 
God, what the Muslims have said, ʿĪsā  is not even this 
straw’s equivalent more than that”.   
 
Najjāshī then told the Muslims they could remain in his country 
in peace. Even if he was given a mountain of gold, he would not 
persecute them.  He then commanded that all the gifts which were 
given by the Quraysh, be returned to them. He said he had no need 
of them and Allāh  had given him his dominion without 
bribery, therefore he would not take a bribe and hand the Muslims 
over to the Quraysh. 
 
The session at the court ended. The Muslims were happy and in 
high spirits.  The Qurayshi delegation having been humiliated, 
returned to Makkah.  They failed in their plan to bring back the 
Muslims from Abyssinia. 
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ʿUmar ibn al-Khaṭṭāb  

l-Khaṭṭāb ibn Nufayl was from the tribe of Banū ʿAdīy. 
Amongst his children was ʿUmar , who was initially 
a severe opponent of Rasūlullāh  and the 

religion of Islām.  However, Allāh  had great plans for him 
and he would become one of the greatest leaders Islām had ever 
seen.   
 
The cause of ʿUmar  entering into the fold was the 
supplication of Rasūlullāh .  In a Ḥadīth narrated by ibn 
ʿUmar , he mentions, “Rasūlullāh  supplicated to 
Allāh  and said: 
 

َّجَهْلٍََّّالَلّٰهُم ََّّ بِِّ
َ
ِّأ َّإِّلَِكََّْب لَيْنِّ َّالر جُ َّهَذَينِّْ ِّ حَب 

َ
ِّأ لَامََّب َّالإِّسْ عِّز 

َ
أ  

10 حَب هُمَاَّإِّلَِهَِّّْعُمَرَُّ
َ
َّ.َّقاَلََّوَكََنََّأ َّ ابِّ َّالَْۡط  ِّعُمَرََّبنِّْ وَّْب

َ
 َّأ

 
“‘O Allāh! Honour Islām through the dearest of these two men to 

you: Through Abū Jahal or through ʿUmar ibn al-Khaṭṭāb.’ He 
said: ‘And the dearest of them to Him was ʿUmar.’” 

 

اب َّالَْۡط   عُمَرََّبنِّْ

 
10 Sunan Tirmidhī 4045 

A 
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Rasūlullāh was told through divine inspiration that 
Abū Jahal will never embrace Islām.  Rasūlullāh  then 
made a specific supplication for ʿUmar  and said: 
 

 اللهمَّايد الاسلامَّبعمرَّبنَّالۡطابَّخاصة
  

“O Allāh, strengthen Islām with  
ʿUmar Ibn al-Khaṭṭāb specifically.” 

 
The Plan of ʿUmar   
ʿUmar  was severely against the Rasūlullāh   and 
despised the religion of Islām.    
 
On one occasion, Abū Jahal made an announcement that he would 
guarantee 100 hundred camels to the person who kills Rasūlullāh  
.  ʿ Umar  asked Abū Jahal if he really had given this 
guarantee, and he replied he had.  
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ʿUmar  left with sword in hand, with the intention of 
putting an end to Rasūlullāḥ .  On the way he saw 
a calf which some people were trying to slaughter.  He 
stopped to see what was happening and suddenly he 
heard a voice coming from the stomach of the calf 
saying: 

 
“O family of Dharīḥ, there is a successful command,  

a man is exclaiming with an eloquent tongue,  
‘Call people towards testifying that there is no God, but Allāh  

and Muḥammad is His Messenger’” 
 
When ʿUmar  heard these words, he thought to himself that 
he is the person who is being addressed with this message.  Even 
then ʿUmar  didn’t stop and carried on with the intention of 
completing his mission.  
 
ʿUmar  then met Nuʿaym ibn ʿAbdullāh .  Nuʿaym 
 had embraced Islām but it was not common knowledge.  
Nuʿaym  asked ʿUmar  where he was going. ʿUmar 
 replied that he was going to kill Rasūlullāh . 
 
Nuʿaym  then asked ʿUmar , how would he escape 
from the Banū Hāshim and the Banū Zuhrah if he killed Rasūlullāh 
? 
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Upon hearing this question, ʿUmar  accused Nuʿaym 
 of becoming ‘Ṣābī’ and leaving the religion of his 
forefathers.   
 
Nuʿaym  replied, “What are you saying to me, don’t you 
know that your sister Fāṭimah and your brother-in-law Saʿīd ibn 
Zayd have both become ‘Ṣābī’ and left your religion and accepted 
Islām?” 

 
As soon as ʿUmar  heard what Nuʿaym  had said, his 
anger increased, and he made his way to his sister’s house. 
 
The House of Fāṭimah bint al-Khaṭṭāb   
When ʿUmar  was going to the house of his sister Fāṭimah 
, Khabbāb ibn al-Aratt  was teaching her and her 
husband Saʿīd ibn Zayd .  As soon as Khabbāb  heard 
ʿUmar coming, he quickly hid inside the house.   
 
In Ibn Isḥāq, it mentions that Khabbāb  had a manuscript of 
Sūrah Ṭāhā which he was reciting 
to them.    As ʿUmar  
approached the house, he had 
heard Khabbāb  reciting the 
Qur’ān.  ʿUmar  entered the 
house and asked, what had he heard.  
His sister and brother-in-law said 
that he hadn’t heard anything. 
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ʿUmar  then told his sister and brother-in-law that he had 
been informed, they were now following the religion of 
Muḥammad .   
 

Saʿīd ibn Zayd , the brother-in-law of ʿUmar  said to 
him “O ʿUmar, if you know that your religion is not the truth, but 
another religion is on truth, then tell us what should a person 
do?” 
 
ʿUmar  then fell upon Saʿīd ibn Zayd  and started to 
hit him.  His sister tried to stop him, but ʿUmar  also hit her 
in such a way that her face became injured.   Only when he saw his 
sister’s face did he stop hitting them.  
 
At that point his sister Fāṭimah  
said, “O son of Al-Khaṭṭāb, do 
whatever you can, we have 
already become Muslim. O enemy 
of Allāh, are you only hitting us 
for the reason, that we believe 
Allāh  is One?  Know this, 
that we have embraced Islām, even 
though your nose may be covered in 
dust”.  
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ʿUmar  reads the Qur’ān  
Upon hearing the words of his sister, ʿUmar  felt 
embarrassed and regretted his actions.  He asked them to show 
the book they had been reading.  Khabbāb  who had been 
hiding in the house, heard the request and came out.    
 

Fāṭimah  said to her brother, “You are unclean, and only 
pure people can touch the Qur’ān, so go and perform Wuḍū”.   
 
ʿUmar  went and purified himself.   He then took the blessed 
manuscript in his hands in which Sūrah Ṭāhā was written and 
started to read it until he reached the following verse: 
 

ناََّ
َ
َّأ ََّإِّن نِِّ  ِّلَََّّٰلَا ََّّاللّّٰ ناََّا

َ
إِّلا  َّأ  

11 ١٤ ِّكۡرِّىََّّۡ ََّلَِّّ لوَةٰ َّٱلص  قِّمِّ
َ
َّوَأ  فٱَعۡبُدۡنِّ

 

“Surely, I am Allāh. There is no God but Myself, so worship Me, 
and establish Ṣalāh for My remembrance.” 

 

Upon reading these words, ʿUmar  started to praise them.    
Khabbāb  heard his words and said, “O ʿUmar, glad tidings 
to you.  I hope that the supplication Rasūlullāh  made 
for you has been accepted”.  ʿUmar  then asked Khabbāb 
 to take him to Rasūlullāh . 

 
11 Sūrah Ṭāhā Verse 14 
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ʿUmar  embraces Islām 
Khabbāb  took ʿUmar  to Dār al-Arqam where 
Rasūlullāh  and his Companions  had 
congregated.  They reached the house, and the door was closed.   
 
They knocked on the door and asked 
for permission to enter.  When the 
Companions  inside realised it 
was ʿUmar , no one had the 
courage to open the door.  Ḥamzah 
 said, “Open the door and let him 
in. If Allāh  has intended good 
for him then Allāh will guide him, and 
he will enter the fold of Islām and 
follow the Messenger of Allāh 
. Otherwise, you will be safe 
from his evil with the will of Allāh ”.
 

Rasūlullāh  gave permission for them to enter and the 
door was opened. ʿUmar  mentions that two people took 
hold of him and made him stand in front of Rasūlullāh 
.   Rasūlullāh  told them to leave him.  
 
Rasūlullāh  then took hold of the tunic of ʿUmar   
and pulled him towards him.  He then said, “O son of Al-Khaṭṭāb, 
accept Islām”.  Rasūlullāh  then supplicated to Allāh 
 to guide him. 
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In another narration it mentions Rasūlullāh  said, “O 
Allāh, this is ʿUmar ibn al-Khaṭṭāb. O Allāh, honour your religion 
with ʿUmar ibn al-Khaṭṭāb”. 
 
Rasūlullāh  then asked ʿUmar  if he was not going 
to stop until Allāh  sends down a calamity upon him. 
 

ʿUmar  replied, “O Messenger of Allāh, this is the reason I 
have come here, that I believe in Allāh  and His 
Messenger  and whatever has been revealed by Allāh 
”.   He then recited: 
 

َّ ِّلا  ِّلََّا َُّاشَْهَدَُّانََّْلَاَّا وْلََُّّاللّّٰ َِّّوََّانَ كََّرسَُ اللّّٰ  
 

“I bear witness that there is no God except Allāh and Indeed you 
are the Messenger of Allāh.” 

 

Upon hearing this, Rasūlullāh said the Takbīr, ‘Allāhu 
Akbar’ with a loud voice due to happiness, and all the people in 
Dār al-Arqam realized that ʿUmar  had now entered the fold 
of Islām.  
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َّ َّعَنِّ دَُّلَقَدِّ بِّْْيلَُّفَقَالََّياََّمَُُم  مََّعُمَرَُّنزََلََّجِّ
سْلَ
َ
اَّأ َّعَب اسٍَّقاَلََّلمَ  ابنِّْ

12 َّعُمَرََّ مَاءَِّّبِّإِّسْلَامِّ هْلَُّالس 
َ
َّأ  اسْتَبشََْۡ

 
Ibn ʿAbbās  narrated, “When ʿUmar  accepted Islām, 
Jibrīl came down and said ‘O Muḥammad, all the creation 

in the Heavens are rejoicing because of ʿUmar’s Islam.’” 
  
With ʿUmar  embracing, the respect and honour of Islām 
increased and the true religion went into the ascendancy.  The 
Muslims now started to read Ṣalāh in Al-Masjid al-Ḥaram.   The 
call towards Islām was now made openly.  From that day, the 
difference between truth and falsehood became clear and 
Rasūlullāh  named ʿ Umar  Fārūq, which means the 
one who distinguishes between truth and falsehood. 
  

 
12 Sunan Ibn Mājah 108 
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The Boycott  
he number of Muslims was increasing on a daily basis, and 
Islām had been strengthened by ʿUmar and Ḥamzah 
.  Furthermore, Najjāshī, had given refuge to the 

Muslims who had migrated to Abyssinia and treated them with 
great respect and honour.  All of these factors were breaking the 
resolve of the Quraysh. They now decided to take a new approach.  
The Quraysh agreed between them to introduce a boycott.  The 
terms of this boycott were as follows: 
 

 

All ties will be severed with 
Rasūlullāh ,  

the Banū Hāshim and all their supporters 

 
No one can marry a person from the Banū Hāshim 

  
No one will talk to them until Rasūlullāh   

 is handed over to them 
 

 
The document was written and placed inside the Kaʿbah. Manṣūr 
ibn ʿIkrimah who had written the document was punished right 
away by Allāh .  He was unable to write anything from 
that day forth. 
 

T 
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The Boycott Starts  
The leaders of the Quraysh all agreed to the terms, except the 
Banū al-Muṭṭalib.  The Banū al-Muṭṭalib were the children of 
Hāshim’s brother Al-Muṭṭalib.  Due to this disagreement, they also 
became subject to the boycott.    
 

Abū Ṭālib, along with the others, had no choice but to now move 
out of the centre of Makkah to a valley on the outskirts.  This 
valley became known as the valley of Abū Ṭālib. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Banū Hāshim and Banū al-Muṭṭalib, both Muslims and non-
Muslims, supported Rasūlullāh and moved out to the 
valley.  The Muslims moved because of their religion and the non-

Figure 6 - The approximate location of the valley of Abū Ṭālib 
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Muslims due to their ties of kinship.   From the Banu Hāshim, only 
Abū Lahab stayed with the Quraysh in Makkah.  
 

The Difficulties of the Boycott 
The boycott did not just carry on for a day, or a week or a month, 
but for three years. The families of the Banū Hāshim and Banū al-
Muṭṭalib stayed like this with ever mounting difficulties.    
 

The people were starving to the extent that children could be 
heard crying.  Those who were cold hearted would get happy 
seeing the state of the Muslims, whilst those who were merciful 
did not like what they were seeing.  They would say, “Did you not 
see what happened to Manṣūr 
ibn ʿIkrimah?”.  During this 
boycott, the Muslims 
survived by eating the 
leaves of the Acacia 
tree.    
 

The boycott had been implemented to such an extent that when a 
trade caravan used to arrive in Makkah, Abū Lahab would make 
an announcement saying that no one was to sell to the people of 
Muḥammad  for the normal price. They would have to 
charge them much more. If this caused anyone loss, then he would 
be responsible.  The Companions  would go to buy 
provisions but would return empty handed because of the inflated 
prices. 
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The Secret Provisions  
There were some people from the Quraysh who saw the state of 
the Banū Hāshim and Banū al-Muṭṭalib and took pity on them. 
They would secretly send them food and provisions.   
 
On one occasion, Ḥakīm ibn Ḥizām , the nephew of Khaḍījah 
 was going to see her.   Along with his servant, he was taking 
her some grain.   On the way they met Abū Jahal and he asked 

them if they were taking the grain for 
the Banū Hāshim.  He told them that 
he would not let them take it on any 
account and would disgrace them in 

front of everyone.   
 
It just so happened that Abū al-Bakhtarī was passing by.  After he 
found out what was happening, he said to Abū Jahal that a person 
is sending some grain to his aunt, why was he stopping 
them?  When Abū Jahal heard this, he got very angry and started 
to say very bad words.  Abū al-Bakhtarī picked up a camel bone 
and struck Abū Jahal on the head causing him to bleed. 
 
More than the actual physical pain, Abū Jahal felt more agony due 
to being humiliated.  This was because Ḥamzah  had been 
watching everything taking place, from the valley of Abū Ṭālib. 
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The Effort to Break the Boycott 
The boycott had continued for around three years and now a 
group of people from the Quraysh decided to try and break it.  The 
person to initiate this was Hishām ibn ʿAmr.  He used to see that 
they, meaning the people in Makkah, were all fed and watered 
whilst their brethren from the Banū Hāshim and Banū al-Muṭṭalib 
were starving in the valley.    
 

To ease some of their plight, he used to 
take a camel full of provisions at night 
time to the valley and leave it there.    
 

One day Hishām ibn ʿAmr went to 
Zuhayr ibn Abū Umayyah, the grandson 
of ʿAbd al-Muṭṭalib.  He was the son of ʿᾹtikāh bint ʿAbd al-
Muṭṭalib, so he was also the cousin of Rasūlullāh . 
 
Hishām said to Zuhayr, “O Zuhayr, do you like it that you can eat 
what you want, wear what you want, marry who you want, and 
your uncle is desperate for each grain.  I swear by Allāh, if Abū 
Jahal’s uncle and mother’s family were in a state like this, then 
Abū Jahal would never even think of any agreement”.   
 
Zuhayr said regretfully he was alone, what could he possibly do 
alone?  If only there was another person who felt the same way, 
then he would stand up for this cause.  
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Hishām got up from there and went to Al-Muṭʿim ibn ʿAdīy and 
made him think the same way.  Al-Muṭʿim also said that another 
person should be made to share their feelings.   
 
Hishām then went to Abū al-Bakhtarī and after a while to Zumʿā 
ibn al-Aswad and made them also share the same feelings.   In 
total five people got ready and decided they would raise the issue 
when the people gathered the following day.  Zuhayr said that he 
would be the one to start the discussion. 
 

The Announcement 
The following morning, the people started to gather in the Masjid. 
Zuhayr ibn Abū Umayyah stood up and said, “O people of Makkah, 
it is very unfortunate that we can eat, drink, wear clothes, and 
marry and the Banū Hāshim are dying of starvation.  I swear by 
Allāh, I will not sit down until the document upon which the terms 
have been written, is ripped up”.  Abū Jahal then took an oath and 
said this document could never be ripped up.    
 

Zumʿā ibn al-Aswad now joined in the discussion and said, “The 
document can definitely be ripped up. When this document was 
written, we were not happy with it”.  Abū al-Bakhtarī supported 
the words of Zumʿā and said he was speaking the truth; they were 
also not happy.  Al-Muṭʿim then said, both are saying the truth.  
Hishām ibn ʿAmr also now supported them.  Abū Jahal saw what 
was happening and was shocked. He said indeed this was a thing 
which had been fixed in the night.    



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

67 | P a g e  
 

The Document  
During this time, Rasūlullāh  told his uncle Abū Ṭālib, 
about the document which had been drawn up with the terms of 
the boycott and hung inside the Kaʿbah. All the words apart from 
the following which were written at the beginning, had been 
eaten away by insects. 
 

اللهمباسمكَّ  

“In your name, O Allāh” 
 
Abū Ṭālib went to the Quraysh and told them about the 
document.  He said that his nephew has never lied and till today, 
none of his words have been proven untrue.  Abū Ṭālib then 
proposed the following, “If what Muḥammad  is saying 
is true, then you will stop this boycott.  If what he says is false, 
then I am ready to surrender him to yourselves. You can either 
kill him or leave him alive”.    
 

The people agreed and said that Abū Ṭālib, had said a just thing.  
The document was then called for.  When they saw it, to their 
amazement, all the letters apart from Allāh’s name had been eaten 
away by insects.  They lowered their heads in 
shame and embarrassment. The boycott was 
now finally over. 
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The Migration of Abū Bakr   
hilst the Muslims were being boycotted, Abū Bakr 
 decided to migrate to Abyssinia so he could join 
the other Companions  who were already living 

there. 
 
Abū Bakr  set out and reached a place called Bark al-Ghimād 
where he met Ibn ad-Daghinah, the chief of the Qārah tribe.   
 

Ibn ad-Daghinah asked Abū Bakr  where he was going, and 
he replied that his people have turned him 

out, so he wanted to wander the earth 
and worship his Lord. 
 
Ibn ad-Daghinah told Abū Bakr  

that a man like him does not leave and 
nor is he driven out. He then reminded Abū 

Bakr  of the qualities he possessed.  Abū Bakr  helped 
the destitute earn their living and kept good relations with his 
kith and kin. He assisted the weak and the poor. He entertained 
guests generously and helped the calamity-stricken ones.  
 
Ibn ad-Daghinah told Abū Bakr  that he would be his 
protector so he should go back home and worship his Lord there. 
 

W 
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Abū Bakr  returned to Makkah with Ibn ad-Daghinah.  They 
performed Ṭawāf of the Kaʿbah in the presence of the Quraysh, 
then Ibn ad-Daghinah addressed them. 
 
Ibn ad-Daghinah told them that a man like Abū Bakr  should 
not leave his land nor should he be driven out.  He asked them, if 
they would drive out such a man who has so many good qualities? 
Ibn ad-Daghinah then mentioned all the good characteristics of 
Abū Bakr . 
 
The Quraysh accepted Ibn ad- Daghinah’s offer of protection.  
They told him to tell Abū Bakr  to worship his Lord in his 
house.  He could pray Ṣalāh in his home and also recite the Qur’ān, 
but he should not do them publicly.  They were worried that their 
women and children would follow him. 
 
Ibn ad-Daghinah told Abū Bakr  the conditions of the 
Quraysh and he returned to his house.  He worshipped Allāh 

 inside his 
house and didn’t 
recite the Qur’ān 
outside of it.  
 
The thought then 
occurred to Abū Bakr 
 that he should 
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build a Masjid in front of his house, where he could pray and recite 
the Qur’ān. 
 
The women and children of the polytheists now started to gather 
around him.  They used to look at him and wonder 
about what was being recited.    Abū Bakr  was 
a man who cried a lot.  He couldn’t control himself 
when he used to recite the Qur’ān.  This situation 
scared the leaders of the Quraysh, so they sent for 
Ibn ad-Daghinah. 
 
When Ibn ad-Daghinah arrived, they told him that they had 
accepted his protection for Abū Bakr  on the condition that 
he worships inside his house, and he has transgressed that.  He 
has made a Masjid in front of his house, and he prays and recites 
the Qur’ān inside it.  The Quraysh feared this would affect their 
women and children, therefore he should be stopped.   
 
Abū Bakr  should also be told, that he can only worship his 
Lord in the confines of his house.  If he does not like it, then he 
should release you from your obligation to protect him. The 
Quraysh said they didn’t want to break their pact with Ibn ad-
Daghinah and could not tolerate Abū Bakr  worshipping 
openly. 
 
Ibn ad-Daghinah came to see Abū Bakr  and reminded him 
of the conditions upon which he had given him protection.  He 

http://clipart-library.com/clipart/8ixG5abip.htm
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should either abide by them or revoke his protection.  He didn’t 
want the Arabs to say that Ibn ad-Daghinah had given his 
protection to a person and his people did not respect it.  The 
response of Abū Bakr  to Ibn ad-Daghinah was as follows:13 
 

ِّوَارَِّّ رضَََّْبِِّ
َ
وَاركَََّوَأ َّإِّلَِكََّْجِّ ردُُّ

َ
َّأ ََِّّّإِّن ِّ اللّّٰ  

 
“I revoke your pledge of protection and am satisfied with Allāh’s 

protection.” 
 
Abū Bakr  didn’t migrate to Abyssinia but very soon he 
would be part of the most famous migration in the history of 
mankind, the migration to Madīnah. 
 
  

 
13 Ṣaḥīḥ al-Bukhārī 2297 



Sīrah of Muḥammad  Volume 3 – The Trials & Tribulations of the Early Muslims 

72 | P a g e  
 

The Year of Sorrow  
t was now the 10th year of Prophethood.  The Muslims had left 
the valley of Abū Ṭālib and returned to Makkah.  This year 
became known as the ‘Year of Sorrow’ due to the events 

which occurred in it. 
 

Just a few days after returning to Makkah, either in the month of 
Ramaḍān or Shawwāl, Abū Ṭālib, the uncle of Rasūlullāh 
 passed away.    
 
And either 3 or 5 days after that, the wife and companion of 
Rasūlullāh , the first person to accept Islām, Khaḍījah 
 also left this world.    
 

The Death of Abū Ṭālib 
Abū Ṭālib was the paternal uncle of Rasūlullāh .  He had 
looked after him since he was 8 years old.  He had been his 
protector during his Prophethood, much to the dismay of the 
other Qurayshi chiefs. The last 3 years had been spent in 
extremely difficult circumstances during the boycott, and now 
the time had come for Abū Ṭālib to leave this world.    
 

خْبَْهََُّ
َ
ن هَُّأ
َ
بِّيهَِّّأ

َ
َّعَنَّْأ َّسَعِّيدَُّبْنَُّالمُْسَي بِّ نىِّ خْبََْ

َ
هَابٍَّقاَلََّأ َّشِّ َّابنِّْ عَنِّ

باََّطَالِّبٍَّ
َ
اَّحَضََتََّْأ ن هَُّلمَ 

َ
ولَُّأ ََِّّّالوْفَاَةَُّجَاءَهَُّرسَُ صلََّاللَّّعليهََّّاللّّٰ

I 
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بدََّْ َّبْنََّهِّشَامٍَّوعََ باََّجَهْلِّ
َ
دََّعِّندَْهَُّأ َِّّوسلمَّفوَجََ ََّّاللّّٰ مَي ةََّبنِّْ

ُ
َّأ بِِّ
َ
بْنََّأ

ولَُّ َِّّقاَلََّرسَُ ََِّّّالمُْغِّيرةَ َّطَالِّبٍََّّاللّّٰ بِِّ
َ
صلََّاللَّّعليهَّوسلمَّلۡ  

َّقُلَّْلَاََّّ ِّلََّٰياََّعَم ِّ َُّإِّلا ََّّا ِّهَاَّعِّندَََّّْاللّّٰ شْهَدَُّلكَََّب
َ
َِّّكََِّمَةًَّأ َّاللّّٰ  

بدََُّّْ بوَُّجَهْلٍَّوعََ
َ
َِّّفَقَالََّأ ترَغَْبَُّعَنََّّْاللّّٰ

َ
باََّطَالِّبٍَّأ

َ
مَي ةََّياََّأ

ُ
َّأ بِِّ
َ
بْنَُّأ
َّفَلَمَّْيزََلَّْرََّ لِّبِّ َّالمُْط  ةَِّّعَبدِّْ

ولَُّمِّل  َِّّسُ صلََّاللَّّعليهَّوسلمََّّاللّّٰ
رََّمَاَّ بوَُّطَالِّبٍَّآخِّ

َ
َّقاَلََّأ ِّتِّلكََّْالمَْقَالَةَِّّحَت  َّب يَعْرِّضُهَاَّعَلَيهَِّّْوَيَعُودَانِّ

نَّْيَقُولََّلَاَّ
َ
بََِّأ
َ
َّوأَ لِّبِّ َّالمُْط  ةَِّّعَبدِّْ

َّمِّل  ِّلََّٰكََ مَهُمَّْهُوََّعََلَ َُّإِّلا ََّّا َّ.َّاللّّٰ
ولَُّ َِّّفَقَالََّرسَُ صلََّاللَّّعليهَّوسلمََّّاللّّٰ  

مَاَّوَََّّ
َ
ََِّّّأ نهََّْعَنكَََّّْاللّّٰ

ُ
َّلكَََّمَاَّلمََّْأ تَغْفِّرَن  سْ

َ
لۡ  

14 ََُّّتَعَالَََّفِّيهَِّّالآيةَََّ نزَْلََّاللّّٰ
َ
 َّفَأ

 
Saʿīd ibn al-Musayyab  narrated from his father, “When Abū 
Ṭālib approached the time of death, Rasūlullāh  came to 
Abū Ṭālib and found that Abū Jahal ibn Hishām and ʿAbdullāh ibn 
Abū Ummayah were with him.  Rasūlullāh  said to Abū 
Ṭālib, ‘O uncle, say Lā ilāha illallāh, a word I will testify for you 
with it, with Allāh’.   

 
14 Ṣaḥīḥ al-Bukhārī 1360 
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Abū Jahal and ʿ Abdullāh ibn Abū Ummayah said to Abū Ṭālib, ‘Will 
you turn away from the religion of ʿAbd al-Muṭṭalib?’ Rasūlullāh 
 continued to ask Abū Ṭālib, whilst Abū Jahal and 
ʿAbdullāh ibn Abū Ummayah kept on repeating what they were 
saying.  Until the last words that Abū Ṭālib said were that he was 
on the religion of ʿAbd al-Muṭṭalib and refused to say Lā ilāha 
illallāh. 
  
Rasūlullāh  said, ‘I will continue to ask forgiveness for 
you unless I am forbidden by Allāh to do so.’  
 
Allāh  then revealed this verse”:  
 

ِّينََّ لَّ  َّوٱَ ِّلن بِّ ِّ ِّلمُۡشِّۡۡكِّيۡنَََّّمَاَّكََنََّل نَّيسَۡتَغۡفِّرُواَّْل
َ
 وَلوََّۡكََنوُۡاَّ ءَامَنُو اَّْأ

 َّ يمِّ صۡحَـبَُّٰٱلَۡۡحِّ
َ
َّلهَُمَّۡانَ هُمَّۡأ َ َّمَاَّتَبَين  َّبَعۡدِّ َّمِّنُۢ َّقُرۡبََٰ وْلِِّ

ُ
 ١١٣15أ

  
“It is not for the Prophet () and those who believe that 

they seek forgiveness for the polytheists, even if they were 
relatives, after it has become clear to them that they are the 

companions of the fire.” 

 
  

 
15 Sūrah at-Taubah Verse 113 
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The Burial of Abū Ṭālib 

There is a Ḥadīth in Sunan Nasa’ī which tells us about the funeral 
of Abū Ṭālib.  Abū Ṭālib was also the father of ʿAlī . 
 

َّ بِِّ
َ
َّشُعْبَةَُّعَنَّْأ ثنَِِّ دٍَّقاَلََّحَد  َّعَنَّْمَُُم  دَُّبْنَُّالمُْثنَِ  ناََّمَُُم  خْبََْ

َ
أ

يَةََّبنََّْكَعْبٍَّ ن هَُّإِّسْحَاقََّقاَلََّسَمِّعْتَُّناَجِّ
َ
َّرضََّاللَّّعنهَّأ َّعَنَّْعََلِّ ٍ

باََّطَالِّبٍَّمَاتََّ
َ
َّأ َّصلََّاللَّّعليهَّوسلمَّفَقَالََّإِّن  تَََّالَ بِّ 

َ
فَقَالَََّّ.أ  

ََِّّّ ََِّّّقاَلَََّّ.قاَلََّإِّن هَُّمَاتََّمُشِّْۡكًَََّّ.َّاذهَْبَّْفوََارِّه َّ.َّاذهَْبَّْفوََارِّه
16 لَّْ َّاغْتَسِّ َّ عْتَُّإِّلَِهَِّّْفَقَالََّلَِّ اَّوَارَيتُْهَُّرجََ  فَلَم 

  

ʿAlī  came to Rasūlullāh  and told him that his 
father Abū Ṭālib had passed away.  Rasūlullāh  told ʿAlī 
 to go and bury his father.  ʿAlī  said to Rasūlullāh 
 that his father had died as a polytheist.  Rasūlullāh 
 again told him to go and bury him.   
 
After ʿAlī  had buried Abū Ṭālib, he returned to Rasūlullāh 
.  Rasūlullāh  then told ʿAlī  to take a 
bath. 
 
 
 

 
16 Sunan Nasa’ī 191 
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The Death of Khadījah  
Rasūlullāh  had been married to Khadījah  for 25 
years.  A few days after returning from the valley of Abū Ṭālib, she 
also passed away.  She was buried in Jannah al-Muʿallāh and was 
laid in her resting place by Rasūlullāh  himself.  At that 
time, there was no Janāzah Ṣalāh. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

     Figure 7 - Jannah al-Muʿallāh 

Khadījah  had supported Rasūlullāh  all her life.  
She had been the first person to embrace Islām.  Whilst Rasūlullāh 
 was married to her, he did not take any other wives.  All 
but one of the children of Rasūlullāh , were from 
Khadījah .   

 خَدِّيجةَ
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The Journey to Ṭā’if  
he loss of Abū Ṭālib meant that Rasūlullāh  had 
no helper or protector, and the death of Khaḍījah  
meant he had no one to console him.   

 
Rasūlullāh  made plans at the end of the month of 
Shawwāl in the 10th year of Prophethood to go to Ṭā’if. The city of 
Ṭā’if lies to the east of Makkah and is approximately 40 miles 
away.   
 

 
     Figure 8 – Ṭā’if  

Rasūlullāh  thought, maybe the people in Ṭā’if, the Banū 
Thaqīf, would accept his call towards Allāh  and become 
his helpers and protectors.  So, he left for Ṭā’if with Zayd ibn 
Ḥārithah .  
 

T 

Makkah 

Ṭāif 
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The Invitation to the Leaders 

Rasūlullāh  arrived in Ṭā’if and presented Islām to three 
brothers who were from among their leaders, ʿAbdu Yālayl, 
Masʿūd and Ḥabīb ibn ʿAmr ibn ʿUmayr.   
 
Rather than even listen to his call, they turned him away with 
severe words.  One of them said, “Couldn’t Allāh  find 
anyone else apart from you, to send as a Messenger?” Another 
took an oath that he wouldn’t even talk to him.   They then told 
the street urchins to pelt Rasūlullāh  with stones and 
mock him.  
 

Rasūlullāh  was pelted 
and he became wounded. When 
Rasūlullāh  would sit 
down due to the pain caused by 
the stones, they would lift him 
up again, so they could throw 
even more stones at him and 
laugh.    
 

Zayd ibn Ḥārithah  who was with Rasūlullāh  tried 
his best to stop the stones from reaching him.  He would shield 
the blessed body of Rasūlullāh  with his own and his 
head became wounded.  The feet of Rasūlullāh  were so 
injured, that they were also bleeding.  
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ʿAddās  
On the way back from Ṭā’if, Rasūlullāh  and Zayd  
took refuge under a tree in a garden which belonged to ʿ Utbah and 
Shaybah ibn Rabīʿah. Rasūlullāh  then supplicated to 
Allāh .    
 

ʿUtbah and Shaybah had been watching the helplessness of 
Rasūlullāh  and told their servant ʿAddās to take some 
grapes to Rasūlullāh  in a platter and tell him to eat 
some of them.  

ʿAddās put the grapes in front of the 
Rasūlullāh  who recited 
Bismillāh and started to eat 
them.  ʿAddās said, “I swear by my 

Lord that there is no one in this town 
who says these words”.  Rasūlullāh 

 asked him where he was from and what religion he 
followed.    
 
ʿAddās said that he was from Nineveh and followed the Christian 
faith.  Rasūlullāh  asked him if it was the same Nineveh 
in which the pious servant of Allāh , Yūnus ibn Mattā 
 used to live.  ʿAddās asked Rasūlullāh  what he 
knew about him.   
 
Rasūlullāh  said, “My brother was a Prophet, and I am a 
Prophet also”.  ʿAddās then kissed the forehead, hands, and feet of 
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Rasūlullāh  and bore witness that he was the Prophet 
and servant of Allāh .  
 

When ʿAddās returned, ʿUtbah and Shaybah asked him why he 
was kissing the hands and feet of Rasūlullāh .  ʿAddās 
said, “O my masters, there is nothing in this world better than 
him, he has told me of things which only a Prophet would know”. 
The brothers then told him that this man may turn you away from 
your religion and your religion is superior to his. 
 
The Angels Offer  
On one occasion, ʿĀ’ishah  asked Rasūlullāh  if 
there had ever been a day more severe on him, than the day of 
Uḥud?  Rasūlullāh  replied, that her people had caused 
her a lot of problems (meaning the Quraysh), however what was 
even more troublesome than that, was the day of Al-ʿAqabah, 
when he presented himself to Ibn ʿAbdu Yālayl ibn ʿAbd Kulāl and 
he didn’t accept his invitation as he had intended.   
 
Rasūlullāh  said he had left 
from there and was very upset.  He 
carried on and reached Qarn al-
Thaʿālib.  He then looked up and 
saw that a cloud was shadowing 
him and Jibrīl  was there.   
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Jibrīl  called Rasūlullāh  and said “Allāh  
has heard what the people have said to you and how they replied 
to you.  Allāh has sent the Angel of the mountains so you 
can give him any command you want to, regarding these people”.  
 
The Angel of the Mountains then called out to Rasūlullāh 
 and presented his greetings to him.  He said, “O 
Muḥammad (), command me as you wish.  If you wish, I 
can make these two mountains (between which the people of 
Makkah and Ṭā’if used to reside) fall upon them”. 
  
Rasūlullāh  said “No, I have hope that Allāh  
will bring such people in their progeny who will only worship Him 
and not join any partners with Him”.    
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The Jinns Listen to the Call  
On the way back from Ṭā’if, Rasūlullāh  stayed for a few 
days in Nakhlah.   
 
One-night Rasūlullāh  was reading Ṣalāh when a group 
of 7 Jinns from Naṣībīn passed by him. They stood and listened to 
Rasūlullāh  reciting the Qur’ān and then went back to 
their people.  Rasūlullāh  had no knowledge that they 
had been there until Allāh  sent the following Revelation: 

 

وهَُّ اَّحَضََُ َانََّفَلَم  َّيسَۡتَمِّعُونََّٱلۡقُرءۡ ِّ ن  ِّنََّٱلِّۡۡ َّإِّلَِۡكََّنَفَرًاَّم 
نَا  وَإِذَّۡصََفَۡ

َّْ تُوا نصِّ
َ
رِّينََّقاَلوُ اَّْأ نذِّ َّقوَۡمِّهِّمَّمُّ وۡاَّْإِّلََٰ

َّوَل  َ اَّقضُِِّ  ٢٩َّفَلَم 

 َّْ نَا َّإِّن اَّسَمِّعۡنَاََّّقاَلوُا ٰـقَومَۡ َّ كِّتبًٰايَ ِّمَاَّبيَۡنَ قاًَّل  ِّ َّمُصَد  َّمُوسََٰ َّبَعۡدِّ نزِّلََّمِّنُۢ
ُ
أ

سۡتَقِّيمٍَّ يَهۡدِّىيدََيهَِّّۡ َّطَرِّيقٍَّمُّ َّوَإِلََٰ ِّ  ٣٠إِّلَََّٱلَۡۡق 

 َّ َ يبُواَّْدَاعِِّ جِّ
َ
نَا َّأ ٰـقَومَۡ َِّّيَ ِّهََِّّّاللّّٰ َامِّنُواَّْب ِّكُمَّۡ يَغۡفِّرَّۡلـَكُموءَ ِّنَّذُنوُب م 

مٍَّ لِِّ
َ
ِّنَّۡعَذَابٍَّأ مَّم  ركُۡ ٣١َّوَيُجِّ َ َّيُجِّبَّۡدَاعِِّ

َِّّومََنَّلا  فلََيۡسَََّّاللّّٰ
َِّّ َّوَليَۡسََّلََُّب رۡضِّ

َ
َّٱلۡۡ زٍَّفِّ ِّهَِّّدُوَّمِّنَّ مُعۡجِّ اَ ءََُّّن وۡلِِّ

َ
 أ

وْلَـٰٓٮِٕكَََّّ
ُ
ََّّأ ٰـلٍََّّفِّ بِّينٍََّّضَلَ  ٣٢17َّمُّ

 
17 Sūrah al-Aḥqāf Verses 29-32 
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“And (recall) when We directed a group of Jinns towards you, 
listening to the Qur’ān. So, when they attended it, they said  

(to each other), ‘Keep quiet’. Then once it was over, they went 
back to their people as warners. (29)  

They said, ‘O our people, we have heard a book sent down after 
Mūsā (), confirming what was before it, which guides to 

the truth and to a straight path. (30)  
O our people, respond to Allāh’s herald, and believe in him, and 
(once you do that,) Allāh will forgive your sins for you, and will 
save you from a painful punishment. (31) The one who does not 

respond to Allāh’s herald is not (able) to frustrate (Allāh by 
escaping) in the land, and for him there are no supporters 

besides Him. Such people are in open error. (32)’” 
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The Return to Makkah  
When Rasūlullāh  and Zayd  approached Makkah, 
Zayd  asked Rasūlullāh , how would they enter the 
city.  Rasūlullāh  said that Allāh  would find a 
way out for them from this predicament.    
 
They reached the cave of Ḥirā’ and sent a message to Akhnas ibn 
Sharīq asking if Rasūlullāh   
could enter Makkah under his 
protection.  Akhnas replied that 
he was an ally of the 
Quraysh, so he could not 
help.    
 

Rasūlullāh  then asked Suḥayl ibn ʿAmr.  He also 
refused.  He then asked Al-Muṭʿim ibn ʿAdīy if he could enter 
Makkah under his protection.  Al-Muṭʿim agreed and called his 
sons and other people from his clan to come with their weapons 
and wait at the doors of the Masjid.   
 
Al-Muṭʿim proclaimed in front of the Quraysh that he had given 
protection to Rasūlullāh  and no one should object to 
him.  
 

Rasūlullāh  entered the Masjid and kissed Al-Ḥajr al-
Aswad. He then performed Ṭawāf, read 2 RakꜤah and returned to 
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his home.  During this time, Al-Muṭʿim and his sons created a 
circle around the Rasūlullāh .   
 
Many years later, on the day of the battle of Badr, Rasūlullāh 
remembered Al-Muṭʿim’s favour.  The Muslims had 
many captives and Rasūlullāh  said, “If Al-Muṭʿim ibn 
ʿAdīy was alive today and was to ask me about these people, then 
I would release them all due to his favour”.  
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Summary  
s Islām started to flourish, more people were embracing 
the true religion. The enmity of the Quraysh also 
increased, as this new religion could affect their 

authority, position, and control amongst the Arabs.  Islām invited 
people towards worshipping the One True God and told people to 
turn away from polytheism. 
 
Many leaders of the Quraysh openly persecuted the new 
followers.  The poor and destitute Muslims suffered greatly at the 
hands of these people.  Amongst the enemies of Islām were ʿAmr 
ibn Hishām or Abū Jahl as Rasūlullāh  named him, Abū 
Lahab, the uncle of Rasūlullāh , Umayyah and Ubay ibn 
Khalaf and many more.  They would use whatever means they 
could to try and turn the new followers away from Islām. 
   
Many Muslims suffered at their hands including Bilāl , the 
family of ʿAmmār ibn Yāsir , Ṣuhayb  and Khabbāb 
.  The Companions  remained patient and steadfast 
throughout these trials and Allāh  elevated their 
statuses. 
 
Meanwhile, the Quraysh continued asking Rasūlullāh  
question after question, and demanded miracles, like splitting the 
moon in two.  Allāh  caused this to happen, but still, this 
did not satisfy them. 

A 
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To escape persecution, some of the Muslims emigrated to 
Abyssinia, the land of Najjāshī who was a just Christian King.   
 
The first migration ended when the Muslims returned to Makkah 
after they had falsely heard the Quraysh had embraced Islām. 
 
The second migration was much larger. Over 100 Companions 
, men and women migrated to Abyssinia.  They lived there 
in peace, free to practice Islām without any persecution.  The 
Quraysh then sent a delegation to convince Najjāshī to send them 
back.  This resulted in an audience between the King, the 
delegation, and the Muslims. 
 
After hearing the words of the Noble Qur’ān, Najjāshī told the 
Muslims they could stay and live there in peace. He would not 
surrender them under any circumstances whatsoever. 
 
Allāh  had already strengthened Islām with Ḥamzah 
.  Rasūlullāh  now supplicated to Allāh  to 
further strengthen his religion with either Abū Jahal or ʿUmar 
. 
 
ʿUmar  had gone with sword in hand to put an end to 
Rasūlullāh , but his attention was diverted to the house 
of his sister Fāṭimah .  He arrived at the sound of the 
recitation of the Holy Qur’ān and was greatly angered when he 
realised both his sister and brother-in-law had started to follow 
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the way of Rasūlullāh . He fell upon his brother-in-law 
and even hurt his sister.  
 
ʿUmar  calmed down and read the words of the Revelation. 
He asked to be taken to Rasūlullāh .  The supplication of 
Rasūlullāh was answered and ʿUmar  entered 
into the fold of Islām. 
 
The Quraysh now decided to boycott the Muslims and their 
supporters. This would continue until Rasūlullāh is 
handed over to them. No one could talk to them, marry them or 
trade with them.  The terms were written on a document and 
hung inside the Kaʿbah. 
 
Abū Ṭālib, along with the rest of the Banū Hāshim and Banū al-
Muṭṭalib left Makkah and moved away to a valley.  It was a time of 
intense hardship for the Muslims and their supporters who stayed 
there.  
 

The boycott was finally broken when a group of people from the 
Quraysh took steps to try and break it.  Furthermore, Rasūlullāh 
, had been given divine news that the document upon 
which the terms of the boycott had been written, had been eaten 
away.  
 

Abū Ṭālib informed the Quraysh of what Rasūlullāh  had 
told him and gave them an ultimatum.  If the words of Rasūlullāh 
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 were lies, he would hand him over, if not then the 
boycott should be cancelled.   
 
The document was checked, and they found that Rasūlullāh 
 had spoken to truth. The boycott was finally broken.  
 
The 10th year of Prophethood was known as the ‘Year of Sorrow’ 
due to the death of Abū Ṭālib and Khaḍījah .  Khaḍījah 
, the wife of Rasūlullāh  was the first to answer his 
call and had been with him all these years providing him support.  
She passed away after 25 years of marriage with Rasūlullāh 
. On the other hand, Abū Ṭālib, the uncle who had 
protected him since he was 8 years old, died without embracing.  
 

Rasūlullāh  then journeyed to Ṭā’if, to invite the Banū 
Thaqīf towards Islām.  He was not received in a polite manner and 
the street urchins were sent after him and Zayd  who had 
accompanied him. 
 
They were pelted with stones relentlessly as they left the town 
and took refuge in a garden where they met ʿAddās, who 
originated from Nineveh, the town of Yūnus . 
 
Allāh  then sent Jibrīl  and the Angel of the 
mountains, who would do what Rasūlullāh  
commanded. Even after all the pain and hurt the people had 
caused him, Rasūlullāh  supplicated for their progeny 
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saying he hoped there would be people from them who will only 
worship Allāh  and not join partners with 
Him. Rasūlullāh  then travelled back to Makkah and 
entered under the protection of Al-Muṭʿim ibn Adīy.  
 

The first ten years of Prophethood had been very testing, but the 
number of Muslims was ever increasing, and their faith was 
becoming ever stronger.  The Quraysh were running out of ideas 
and soon Rasūlullāh  would tell them of the most 
miraculous journey ever undertaken by any man.  A journey 
which would take him to the furthest Masjid and then onto the 
Heavens themselves. 



 

 



 

 

 


